CHELTENHAM

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Cheltenham Borough Council
Standards Sub-Committee

Meeting date: 16 May 2023
Meeting time: 2.00 pm

Meeting venue: Council Chamber - Municipal Offices

Membership:

Councillors: Garth Barnes, Tim Harman and lzaac Tailford
Independent Persons:  Duncan Chittenden and Martin Jauch

Important notice — filming, recording and broadcasting of Council
meetings

This meeting will be recorded by the council for live broadcast online at
www.cheltenham.gov.uk and www.youtube.com/user/cheltenhamborough. The
Chair will confirm this at the start of the meeting.

If you participate in the meeting, you consent to being filmed and to the possible use
of those images and sound recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

If you have any questions on the issue of filming/recording of meetings, please
contact Democratic Services.

Contact: democraticservices@cheltenham.gov.uk
Phone: 01242 264 246



http://www.cheltenham.gov.uk/
http://www.youtube.com/user/cheltenhamborough
mailto:democraticservices@cheltenham.gov.uk

1 Election of Chair
2 Apologies
3 Declarations of Interest

4 Review of complaint under the Code of Conduct (Pages 3 - 38)
Complaint against Councillor Charles Taylor



Agenda ltem 4
Page 3

Cheltenham Borough Council
Standards Hearing Sub-Committee — 16 May 2023 — 2pm
Alleged Breach of the Code of Conduct —

Councillor Charles Taylor, Prestbury Parish Council

Accountable officer:
Claire Hughes, Corporate Director and Monitoring Officer
Ward(s) affected:

Prestbury

1. Introduction

1.1. By letter dated 5 March 2023 the Monitoring Officer received a complaint regarding the
conduct of Councillor Charles Taylor of Prestbury Parish Council.

1.2. The complainant alleges that Councillor Taylor has breached the Code of Conduct by acting in
a manner which she considers to be bullying and aggressive.

1.3. Following an initial review of the complaint by the Monitoring Officer it was deemed
appropriate for a full investigation to be conducted. Kate Seeley of the Counter Fraud and
Enforcement Unit was appointed to conduct the investigation.

2. Investigation

2.1. A full investigation into the allegations has now concluded. A copy of the final report is
attached at Appendix 1.

2.2. After reviewing the report and consulting with the Independent Persons the Monitoring was
satisfied that the matter should proceed to a hearing of the Standards Sub-Committee.

3. Process

3.1. Following the process set out in Appendix 2, the Sub-Committee are now asked to consider
this case and determine whether, on the balance of probabilities a breach of the Code of
Conduct has occurred.

3.2. If the Sub-committee determines that a breach has occurred they are then asked to consider



Page 4

what, if any, sanctions should be applied.

3.3. As the Sub-Committee is aware, the sanctions that may be imposed in respect of breaches of
the Code of Conduct cannot include anything that would prevent a Councillor performing their
duties as a Councillor and therefore do not extend to either suspension or disqualification from
the role.

3.4. The current available sanctions are one or more of the following:-
a) Issue a formal Censure or Reprimand to the Member
b) Report its findings to the Parish Council for information

c¢) Recommend the Council or Committees remove the Member from appointments to
Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council

d) Recommend that the Parish Council arrange training for the Member

e) Recommend to the Parish Council that all outside appointments to which the member
has been appointed or nominated by that Authority are removed

f) Recommend that the Parish Council excludes, the Member from the Council’s offices
or other premises for a specified period, with the exception of meeting rooms as
necessary for attending Council, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings

Report author:

Claire Hughes, Corporate Director and Monitoring Officer, claire.hughes@cheltenham.gov.uk

Appendices
1. Investigating Officers Report
2. Procedure for Hearings
Background information:

None


mailto:claire.hughes@cheltenham.gov.uk

Page 5

Investigating Officer

Report

Complaint against
Councillor Charles

Taylor




Counter Fraud and EnforcP29€ 6)nit Code of Conduct Report

Councillor:  Charles Taylor

Council: Prestbury Parish Council
Monitoring Officer: Claire Hughes
Complainant: Ms Hilarie Owen
Investigation Officer: Kate Seeley

Allegation:

1. Failure to treat fellow Councillor with respect
2. Bullying

Appendices:

Complaint

Former Councillor Hilarie Owen (HO) alleges that at a meeting of a climate change working
group on 3™ March 2023 Councillor Charles Taylor (CT) shouted and acted aggressively
towards her. She described his behaviour as insulting, offensive and intimidating. This
resulted in her leaving the meeting very upset and immediately resigning from the Council.

HO alleges that when the meeting started CT proposed himself as Chair, seconded by
Councillor Cathy Hunt (CH). HO did not agree that a Chair was required, or that it should
necessarily be CT. She states CT disagreed insisting, in a raised voice, that he had agreed
with Martyn Hansen (MH) Chair of PPC that it should be run in the same manner as a formal

sub-committee.

HO states she said this should be decided as a group and alleges CT and CH then said in
aggressive tones that CT was the ‘senior person in the room’ and CH added that she used to

be Deputy Chair of the Council.

HO again stated that she did not believe CT should be Chair as he ‘didn’t believe in net zero’
and was very sceptical about the science on climate change. She says he then made a
comment that ‘the UK wasn’t geared up for it’ and that it ‘might be a good thing to have a

warmer climate for farmers’.
Page 1 0f 10

Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX

Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel — 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and EnforcelPage 7it Code of Conduct Report

HO states CT then focussed on Clir Sandra Attwood (SA) ‘working hard to convince her that
he should be Chair’ until she said she would support him. HO said she attempted to speak
but was shouted down by CT who shouted at her not to interrupt. She claims he then
shouted at her “You are only here because of me”.

HO said she then decided to leave the meeting and started to pack away her belongings. She
said CT then ‘screamed’ at her that if she left the Working Group would close down and
nothing would be done on net zero. HO states CT also shouted at her that the Chair, (MH)
was disgusted with her behaviour towards CH (with reference to an incident at a previous
meeting).

HO states she felt so intimidated, and upset by his angry and threatening behaviour that she
could not stay in the room.

Background

At a meeting of Prestbury Parish Council (PPC) Laura Tapping from Cheltenham Borough
Council (CBC) had presented a paper on climate change and the Council’s aims in achieving
Net Zero in the Borough. In response to this Hilarie Owen (HO) had prepared a report which
had been discussed at PPC meeting on 20" February 2023. It was then agreed that a
Working Group should be set-up to discuss how PPC could support CBC’s aims and develop
a strategy to assist the residents of Prestbury to reduce their carbon footprint.

Five councillors volunteered to be a part of the Working Group — Clir Hilarie Owen (HO), Clir
Charles Taylor (CT), Clir Cathy Hunt (CH), Clir Dan Taylor (DT) and Clir Sandra Attwood (SA).

The first meeting of the Working Group was held on 3™ March 2023. The meeting started at
2pm on the 3™ March. (SA did not arrive until 2:15 due to a prior commitment.)

Prior to this meeting there had been email correspondence between CT and HO regarding
the format and set-up of the working group. CT had proposed that it should be run like a
sub-committee, and had suggested he should be the Chair for the first few meetings. One
reason he gave for this proposal was to act as a peacemaker between HO and CH —as there
had been a prior disagreement between the two Councillors. HO did not agree that a Chair
was necessary for a Working Group, or that CT should be Chair and stated this in email
correspondence. HO also made comments in relation to CH and that she would ask her to

Page 2 0of 10

Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit

Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX
Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel - 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and EnforcP29€ 8init Code of Conduct Report

leave the meeting if her behaviour was obstructive. HO also made an email comment to CT
along the lines that she felt he was taking over and was acting like a ‘typical man’.

HO Interview — 22/03/23

HO explained that when she completed her paper on climate change and ideas for how the
PPC could implement a strategy she sent this to the Chair (MH) and Deputy Chair (CT). CT
replied by email saying he wanted to go through the report line by line. HO told him that
she found the tone of his email like that of ‘a teacher correcting my work’. She then met up
with CT and MH which resulted in her changing only one line of her report with support
from MH. She felt however that CT was not happy with the whole idea of PPC implementing
a Net Zero plan. Following this meeting CT emailed and asked to meet her outside the Parish
Offices as he had a question regarding circular economy. HO met him and lent him a book to
read that explained this but CT told her he wanted her to ‘slow down’ and that this (Net

Zero) was work for the Borough Council not PPC.

HO explained the context of her disagreement with CH. DT is a Green Party member and is
relatively young (29). When he attended the PPC as he was interested in joining, HO states
that CH was very unwelcoming to DT and was ‘aggressive in her questioning’ of him. She
asked him about the Green Party putting leaflets through her door. (Which HO and others
did not feel was relevant with regard to DT becoming a PPC Councillor.} CH then went on to
question what he could bring to the Council as he was too young and inexperienced. She
wanted to abstain from voting but MH said she could not.

At the next meeting of the PPC MH had introduced a seating plan to ensure Councillors
moved around and sat next to different Members. CH complained about this and said they
were being treated like children. DT was sat next to CH and before the meeting commenced
CH started being aggressive to DT about the Green Party leaflets. Her comments to DT
became personal and she said something like ‘I've been involved with climate change since
the 1970’s, | don’t need someone like you telling me what to do.” At this point HO says she
stepped in and said to CH ‘ You’'ve been negative since you arrived now just shut up’.

HO agrees it was not appropriate to tell CH to ‘shut up’ and she told MH immediately after
the meeting and he said he agreed but understood why HO said it. MH said he would

arrange to speak to CH.

Page 3 of 10

Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit
Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX

Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel - 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and Enforce\Page Oit Code of Conduct Report

At the next meeting it was agreed to form the Net Zero Working Group and as soon as the
meeting ended CT came over and asked for dates for the first meeting. HO said she emailed
him after this and asked why he assumed he was taking charge and added ‘Why do men
always take over?’. She states this was meant as a ‘tongue in cheek’ comment.

The complainant alleges that a discussion regarding whether there should be a Chair for the
meetings, and who should be the Chair, resulted in CT becoming very angry and displaying
aggressive and bullying behaviour towards her.

HO states she left the meeting and went straight to her son’s house as she was so upset and
distraught. She also messaged the Chair, MH, as soon as she had left the meeting as she was
so shocked and upset by the way CT and CH had behaved.

MH has confirmed to her that he did not instruct CT to run the Working Group like a sub-
committee or tell CT he was ‘disgusted by HO’s behaviour. CT was also insisting that the
Working Group actions should be reported to the Finance and General Purposes Committee
of which he is the Chair — which HO felt was another example of his controlling behaviour.
CT has advised he is not the Chair of the F & GP Committee and the reporting structure was
MH’s decision.)

HO says she has plenty of experience of working as part of a team and has dealt with
colleagues with opposing views and opinions but has always been respectful and courteous.
She felt CT’s behaviour was about his desire to be in control. He is Deputy Chair of the PPC
and Chair of other committees and she felt he wanted to be in control of the Working Group
and did not want HO or anyone else to run the group or be the Chair.

CT interview 23/03/23

CT states he arrived at the PPC offices at the same time as CH, and HO and DT were already
there. HO said at the beginning of the meeting that she was unwell and he asked her if she

wanted to continue. He also made a joke about sitting the other end of the table but she
said she was not infectious.

CT said that he has had wide-ranging discussions on climate change and has read a paper
from a Cambridge professor regarding the benefits of a warmer climate to British farmers —
he says he made a tongue in cheek comment about wine-growing to DT in this regard.

Page 4 of 10

Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit

Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX
Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gqov.uk Tel — 01242 264215

Worki'ng in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and Enfor(Pa9€ 10sit Code of Conduct Report

He had spoken to MH about how to structure the Working Group and MH had confirmed
there was nothing in Standing Orders about how it should be run, however CT thought it
would be best run like a sub-committee with a Chair and Minutes to keep the focus. CT
states he has an email from MH that gives his view that this was the best approach. He
referenced the email exchange with HO and that she was opposed to him being Chair and
that she accused him of taking over like a ‘typical man’. CT states that SA questioned why he
should be Chair and he assured her that he only felt he should be Chair for the first few
meetings in order to get things off the ground and SA was happy with that and agreed. He
said whilst he was speaking to SA HO was constantly interrupting him and trying to ‘shout

him down’.

HO said that he does not believe in climate change but CT says that is not true, he just likes
to question things and has a different view to her. He and HO are not on the ‘same page’
with regard to action by PPC but he did not want the disagreement to cause HO to resign.
He wants the PPC Net Zero plan contribution to work right — produce guidance and help
parishioners in small ways - but he does not feel there is much that the PPC can action as it
should be led by the Borough or County Council. He is not a climate change denier but is
concerned about the impact of some of the Net Zero plans on those on lower incomes - he

‘did not want the poor to be hit’.

CT categorically denies shouting or losing his temper. He states he remained calm and did
not raise his voice or get aggressive. He was very surprised that HO became so upset and
left the meeting. He was also extremely shocked when he learnt that she had made a
complaint. He said he counted HO as a friend and was upset and distressed by her actions.

CT is adamant that as a driving instructor of many years he does not lose his temper or
become angry easily and never raises his voice. If anything he becomes quieter and more
controlled when he is angry. He thought it was a great shame when HO decided to leave the
meeting as her paper showed she had lots to contribute.

CT denies saying ‘you are only here because of me’. He says he bumped into her last year
and invited her to come along and join PPC but did not reference this in the meeting.

CT referenced the previous incident between HO and CH. He states CH was talking to DT
about leaflets and HO shouted at her. He states afterwards MH talked to both of them
about their behaviour. One of the reasons he wanted to be there was to act as a

Page 5 of 10

r n r ni

Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GLT 1PX
Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel - 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and EnforcetPage 11Code of Conduct Report

peacekeeper between CH and HO. He said CH is a keen conservationist who cares

passionately about nature. CH apologised to him after the meeting that they had ‘caused
him trouble’.

He states that DT did not say anything during the disagreement between him and HO. Once
HO left they had a very good meeting and discussed lots of tactics for the action plan.

DT interview 21/03/23

DT says that immediately after the meeting he wrote up an account of what had happened
and passed it to MH, he referred to this account during our meeting.

Fifteen minutes before the meeting he collected a flip chart for HO and helped her to set-up
ready for the meeting. He said CH arrived first, saw that he and HO were already in the
room, ‘muttered’ something and then walked out. She came back in a few minutes later
with CT. He understands that CH and CT are good friends. He cannot recall when SA arrived
but knows she was not there for the start of the meeting.

CT and CH discussed the aims and objectives of the Group. CT wanted a Chair elected and
put himself forward. DT had assumed that HO would facilitate the meetings as she had
written the plan and had pushed for PPC to take action. CT asked him and SA what they
thought and DT said he did not think a Chair was necessary for such a small group.

CT was asserting that there needed to be a Chair and that it should be him as he could be a
peacemaker between CH and HO.

DT says that HO is very small in stature and was not very well that day, but he knows that
her previous career means she is probably used to running meetings and dealing with senior
management. He says CT became very irate and was verbally aggressive. He recalls him
saying that as Vice Chair of the PPC he was the most senior person in the room. He does also

recall him saying ‘You’re only here because of me’ or similar but did not understand what he
meant by that.

CH did not really intervene but did support that CT should be the Chair. CT referenced the
previous meeting where HO told CH to shut up as a reason for him to be the Chair. CT
convinced SA that he should be Chair for the first few meetings. CH and CT both said this
was ‘how we did it before’ and as SA was also new to PPC she was not sure on
policy/precedent so accepted this.

Page 6 of 10

Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit

Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX
Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 95A
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail — fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel - 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and EnforcPad€ 12it Code of Conduct Report

CT commented that ‘if it gets hotter by 1C then our crops would grow better’ or similar. CH
quoted a climate change sceptic. At a previous meeting CT had made clear his doubts
regarding climate change and had seemed to want to put barriers in place to prevent PPC
taking action. He seemed to want to block progress and limit the remit of the PPC and the
Working Group. He also said that everything had to be put before the Finance and General

purposes committee of which he is Chair.

DT said that CT’s aggression was directed at HO and was ‘out of order’. He described his
manner as very aggressive and very angry and the meeting as ‘toxic’. He was stunned by the
way CT acted and did not know what to do. He was concerned if he intervened CT would
only become more incensed. When HO left the meeting DT wanted to go with her to check
she was okay but also because he had never witnessed such hostility before. He questioned
whether he wanted to continue on the PPC following that meeting.

Following HO’s departure DT tried to get a discussion going and they did decide on some
actions, but it was a great shame HO left as her plan was great and she had so much to offer

the PPC.

DT said MH is a very fair and balanced Chair and wants the PPC to be a positive place and
improve the behaviours of the Councillors. He had been very in favour of HO’s Net Zero
plan. He had also been very supportive of DT joining because he wants new ideas and a
fresh perspective. DT has been shocked by the bullying and rude behaviour of some of the
Councillors —including CH and CT.

SA interview 03/04/23

SA said the report from HO was very good — it covered the issues from a high level to a low
level and she had put a lot of effort into it.

SA did not arrive at the meeting until 2:15pm — she had previously advised that she would
be a little late. She states she ‘walked into an atmosphere’. HO had contacted her prior to
this meeting because she was ‘feeling bullied’ by CH and CT. SA was aware that HO and CH
had a prior disagreement regarding the derogatory way CH spoke to DT and that MH had
spoken to HO about this.

Page 7 of 10

Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit
Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX

Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel -~ 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and EnforcerPage 13Code of Conduct Report

CT said he would only be Chair for the first few meetings and SA thought this was
reasonable but HO disagreed. SA got the impression that HO wanted to ‘Chair’ the meeting
as it was ‘her baby’ and she was very invested in the subject.

CH and CT ‘ganged up’ on HO and SA believes she felt cornered. CH raised her voice and was
saying she was a conservationist. CT also shouted at HO. SA said CH was domineering and CT
raised his voice to try and control the situation but CH ‘wound him up’. HO was trying to get
her point across but was shouted down. CT did not stand up at any point but he did lean
forward and his body language was very ‘assertive’ which HO may have found intimidating.
HO accused CT of being a sceptic but HO was not aggressive and her points were valid,
however CT and CH did not listen to her. SA felt it was a real shame that HO left.

SA described it as ‘very uncomfortable’ and agreed with DT’s description of the meeting as
‘toxic’.

MH interview 29/03/23

MH was not present at the meeting but confirmed that HO had messaged him immediately
afterwards and he was very concerned. He regrets that he was not present.

He provided background in relation to the different individuals membership of PPC. He
confirmed that CT and CH were friends.

Due to the disagreement between CH and HO he was concerned about the meeting. CT
wanted to avoid conflict between them but also wanted to control the Working group. He
wanted to run the Group like a committee but MH did not instruct him that this was
necessary. He was concerned by the negativity CT had displayed prior to the meeting and in
his email correspondence with HO/MH. He had tried to make CT’s approach ‘softer’. He also
confirmed that he had put in place changes to try to prevent certain Councillors (including
CH) talking amongst themselves and messaging on their phones during meetings.

Findings

The Code of conduct states that when engaged in the business of Prestbury Parish Council
members shall:-

e Treat others with respect
e Not bully any person

Page 8 of 10

F n n

Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX
Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel — 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and EnforcP@9€ 14t Code of Conduct Report

e Promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your public post by

leadership and example.

CT volunteered to be a member of the Working group so was presumably interested in
helping a Net Zero action plan for PPC, however his initial emails to HO indicate that he was
fairly negative with regard to the implementation of her plan.

| believe he had good intentions in suggesting that he should Chair the meetings in order to
keep the peace between HO and CH. It should not however have been necessary for
anyone to ‘keep the peace’ and it shows that CT held the opinion that HO and CH could not
act professionally and discuss PPC business impartially without allowing personal feelings to
impact. This is a somewhat derogatory view of his colleagues, and may be an indication of
the chauvinistic attitude of which HO has accused him.

The email exchange should have indicated that HO was not keen on his suggestion that he
should Chair the meetings and yet he immediately suggested this at the start of the

meeting. | believe this is indicative of his desire to control the meeting and he should have
allowed HO and others to give alternative suggestions on how the meeting could be run to

reach a democratic and agreed outcome.

Bullying is characterised by ACAS as ‘Offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting
behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power through means that undermine, humiliate,

denigrate or injure the recipient.’

It is apparent from the testimony of DT and SA that CT did lose his temper and did speak in
an aggressive manner towards HO. The comments relating to CT and CH’s seniority on the
PPC and their length of service as Councillors show an attempt to misuse their power to
undermine HO. It is also apparent from HO’s complaint that she felt intimidated by CT and

found his behaviour threatening.

HO has had an impressive career and will have participated in many business meetings with
individuals with opposing views and difficult personalities but states she has never been
subjected to such a personal attack during her employment. This was a Parish Council
meeting on which she sits as a volunteer and gives up her free time to help her local
community. It is unacceptable that anyone should be subjected to hostile and bullying

behaviour in such a meeting.

Page 9 of 10

Enfor nt Uni

Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX
Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel -~ 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Housing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Counter Fraud and EnforceiPage 15Code of Conduct Report

I therefore find Councillor Taylor has breached the Code of Conduct by failing to treat others
with respect and exhibiting bullying behaviour towards a fellow Councillor.

Recommendations

That the matter should be referred to the Standards Committee for consideration of
appropriate sanctions.

Page 10 of 10

Counter Fraud and Enforcement Unit

Cotswold District Council | Trinity Road | Cirencester | Gloucestershire | GL7 1PX
Cheltenham Borough Council | Municipal Offices | Promenade | Cheltenham | Gloucestershire | GL50 9SA
Forest of Dean District Council | High Street | Coleford | Gloucestershire | GL16 8HG

E-mail - fraud.referrals@cotswold.gov.uk Tel — 01242 264215

Working in partnership with Councils, Social Hbusing Providers and organisations to detect crime and
prevent fraud and loss



Page 16

Appendix 1

Complaint against Councillor
Taylor |




Page 17

Dear Chair

It is with great regret that | am writing to raise a formal grievance about bullying and aggressive
behaviour by Council Members.

The individuals concerned are Charles Taylor, the Deputy Chair and _

However, matters came to ahead at a meeting on 3™ March 2023 where, in front of witnesses, their
behaviours were insulting, offensive and intimidating.

I produced a Net Zero strategy for Prestbury, that was | believe discussed at a Finance & General
Purpose Meeting (I was not there) and again on the agenda for the General Meeting on 20™
February. The Council agreed to set up a working group to move this forward and a number of
Councillors volunteered to work together to develop and implement the local plan.

Our frrst meeting was held on 3™ March

My intent, as you will recall, was that we would work together collaboratively as a team of five in a
working group structure, rather than set up a formal sub-committee at this juncture. This would
enable us to achieve more and work as a team.

When the meeting started Charles Taylor proposed himself as Chair, seconded by Cathy. | said we
did not need a Chair as a Working Group and that we, as the group, should decide how to proceed.

I again said that we should decide as a group, at which Charles Taylor and Cathy Hunt said in
aggressive tones that Charles was the senior person in the room and Cathy added that she used to
be Deputy Chair of the Council. This was a clear misuse of power. This denigrated and undermined
the other Councillors and | felt, was intended to humiliate me.

I then said | did not believe Charles Taylor should be Chair as he didn’t believe in net zero, or that we
were in a climate emergency and was very sceptical about the science on climate change believing
that most heating up of the planet was natural. Charles Taylor then confirmed his belief saying we
would never reach net zero as the UK wasn’t geared up for it and that it might be a good thing to
have a warmer climate for farmers.

Charles focused his attention on PPC Sandra Attwood working hard to convince her that he should
be Chair until she said she would support him. | attempted to speak but was shouted down by
Charles Taylor, disrespectfully shouting at me not to interrupt. He then made an extraordinary claim
shouting straight at me “You are only here because of me” as if Councillors are beholden to him for
being put forward and must therefore do his bidding rather than represent the community we serve.

In light of this, | confirmed my belief that Charles Taylor was not a suitable candidate to lead
Prestbury Net Zero agenda and decided to leave the meeting.



Page 18

Charles Taylor then evidenced threatening and bullying behaviours, screaming at me that if | left he
would close down the Working Group and nothing would be done on net zero for Prestbury. | was
deeply shocked and felt very threatened. He then asked me to vote for him as Chair. | refused as in

my heart | knew he didn’t believe in the project.

Charles Taylor by now was red in the face and clearly extremely angry, shouted violently, “Martyn
was very disgusted with your behaviour with Cathy and wanted to report you.” || EEEEEN

Y s twisted the facts to make 2

defamatory statement about me, apparently with slanderous and malicious intent.

At that point | felt under unrelenting and unbearable emotional, and potential physical attack and
left.

The conduct of Charles Taylor left me physically shaking, mentally distressed and in tears.

After this meeting I felt | had no choice but to resign from the Council: this is effectively constructive
dismissal due to the significant and public breach of the mutual trust and confidence that should

exist between Councillors.

I hope you will take the necessary steps to address this serious matter. | look forward to your
response.

Yours sincerely

Hilarie Owen



Page 19

Appendix 2

Further information re
complaint



Page 20

5t March 2023

Martyn Hansen

Chair

Prestbury Parish Council
Parish Council Office
The Pavilion

New Barn Close
Prestbury

Cheltenham GL52 3LP

"'Dear Chair

It is with great regret that | am writing to raise a formal grievance about bullying and aggressive
behaviour by Council Members.

The individuals concerned are Charles Taylor, the Deputy Chair and PPC Cathy Hunt who | have
already had to raise her inappropriate behaviour towards others with you in the past.

However, matters came to ahead at a meeting on 3 March 2023 where, in front of witnesses, their
behaviours were insulting, offensive and intimidating.

I produced a Net Zero strategy for Prestbury, that was | believe discussed at a Finance & General
Purpose Meeting (I was not there) and again on the agenda for the General Meeting on 20t
February. The Council agreed to set up a working group to move this forward and a number of
Councillors volunteered to work together to develop and implement the local plan.

Our first meeting was held on 3 March. While waiting for all members to arrive, Cathy Hunt
repeated her previous behaviour of denigrating colleagues, by claiming that Laura Tapping was
incompetent and that her work and presentation to Council was rubbish. Laura, was attending the
Council to share information about Net Zero activity in Cheltenham, holds a Masters in
Sustainability, Cathy Hunt does not.

My intent, as you will recall, was that we would work together collaboratively as a team of five in a
working group structure, rather than set up a formal sub-committee at this juncture. This would
enable us to achieve more and work as a team.

When the meeting started Charles Taylor proposed himself as Chair, seconded by Cathy. | said we
did not need a Chair as a Working Group and that we, as the group, should decide how to proceed.
Charles Taylor disagreed insisting, in a raised voice, that he had agreed with you that it should be a



Page 21

formal sub-committee even though there is nothing in writing with the Parish Council that this is
how Working Groups should operate.

| again said that we should decide as a group, at which Charles Taylor and Cathy Hunt said in
aggressive tones that Charles was the senior person in the room and Cathy added that she used to
be Deputy Chair of the Council. This was a clear misuse of power. This denigrated and undermined
the other Councillors and | felt, was intended to humiliate me.

I then said | did not believe Charles Taylor should be Chair as he didn’t believe in net zero, or that we
were in a climate emergency and was very sceptical about the science on climate change believing
that most heating up of the planet was natural. Charles Taylor then confirmed his belief saying we
would never reach net zero as the UK wasn’t geared up for it and that it might be a good thing to
have a warmer climate for farmers.

Charles focused his attention on PPC Sandra Attwood working hard to convince her that he should
be Chair until she said she would support him. | attempted to speak but was shouted down by
Charles Taylor, disrespectfully shouting at me not to interrupt. He then made an extraordinary claim
shouting straight at me “You are only here because of me” as if Councillors are beholden to him for
being put forward and must therefore do his bidding rather than represent the community we serve.

In light of this, | confirmed my belief that Charles Taylor was not a suitable candidate to lead
Prestbury Net Zero agenda and decided to leave the meeting.

Charles Taylor then evidenced threatening and bullying behaviours, screaming at me that if | left he
would close down the Working Group and nothing would be done on net zero for Prestbury. | was
deeply shocked and felt very threatened. He then asked me to vote for him as Chair. | refused as in
my heart | knew he didn’t believe in the project.

Charles Taylor by now was red in the face and clearly extremely angry, shouted violently, “Martyn
was very disgusted with your behaviour with Cathy and wanted to report you.” This referred to a
previous incident when | had to call out Cathy Hunt for unacceptable -bullying behaviour toward a
new Councillor. We have already discussed this incident. Charles twisted the facts to make a
defamatory statement about me, apparently with slanderous and malicious intent.

At that point | felt under unrelenting and unbearable emotional, and potential physical attack and
left.

The conduct of Charles Taylor left me physically shaking, mentally distressed and in tears.

After this meeting | felt | had no choice but to resign from the Council: this is effectively constructive
dismissal due to the significant and public breach of the mutual trust and confidence that should
exist between Councillors.

| hope you will take the necessary steps to address this serious matter. | look forward to your
response.

Yours sincerely

Hilarie Owen



Page 22

Context Statement

Joined Prestbury Parish Council August 2022. It hadn’t been straight forward as Cathy Hunt and her
colleague had objected to voting for someone they didn’t know and said the decision should have
been taken without me in the room. | had completed my background on paperwork for this so
perhaps they hadn’t read this. As it happens other councillors supported me and so | was passed as a
member. | was put on the Planning Committee and volunteered to oversee the Litter Pickers once a
month. | do not belong to a political party but after Covid wanted to engage more with where | lived
as it had been a safe place during the pandemic. My international work had finished so the time was

right to do more locally.

On 12" November | went to a C5 meeting — whereby Parish Councillors from across Cheltenham met
at the Civil Service Sports Club. As a new member | wanted to meet others and learn what they did.
The topic was to do with climate, energy and the food crisis. Before going | asked Charles Taylor if he
was going and he replied ‘'no’ and when | asked why he said he had issues with the science on

climate change.

| arrived at the meeting to find | was the only person from Prestbury PC and sat on a table whereby |
was joined by Felicity Parnham Charlton Kings on one side and Laura Tapping CBC on the other. |
asked Laura if she would come and talk to PPC and explain what Cheltenham were doing on climate.

It was surprising that the other Councils were active on climate change but not Prestbury. | decided
to write a Paper for the Council with some ideas. As Charles had mentioned the science, | wrote the
first half of the paper on the scientific evidence. In 2020 | had been invited by my US colleague to
attend an online programme on the science of climate change run by NASA so used my notes and
other information from the World Economic Forum of which I’'m a member. The second half of the
paper was on strategy and action plan with a basic costing. |

I sent this to the Chair and Charles as Deputy Chair and Jane the Parish Clark. Charles replied by
email saying he wanted to go through it line by line. His tone was that of a teacher correcting my
work and | told him so. | met up with him and the Chair and we went through the document. |
changed one sentence he took offence to but defended the rest with support from the Chair. It was
clear Charles was not happy with the whole idea, but we moved forward.

Meanwhile, another new member joined, Dan Taylor from the Green Party but was not welcomed
by Cathy Hunt who confronted him with very aggressive questioning. We were all shocked at her
questioning that included asking what could he bring as a 29 year old with no experience. (We need
young people with fresh ideas and thinking). She asked if they could abstain from voting but was told
by the Chair that all had to vote so reluctantly, she did.

At the next general meeting a month later the Chair had decided to move people around as people
tend to sit at the same place each month and we don’t get to know everyone. When Cathy saw this,
she moaned that we were being treated like children. She was sat next to Dan Taylor and | was sat
the other side of him.

Before the meeting began she was still moaning and a councillor sat the other side of me tried to get
her to be reasonable. Cathy then started being aggressive to Dan again about the Green party
leaflets. He didn’t respond but began to physically lean towards me to get away from the attack. It
became personal as she said to him “ I've been involved with climate change since the 1070’s, | don’t
need someone like you telling me what to do.” It was at this point | stepped in and said: “You've
been negative since you arrived now just shut up.”



Page 23

| probably shouldn’t have said ‘shut up’ but I was trying to defend a young man who was being
verbally attacked. After the meeting | informed the Chair. He agreed | shouldn’t have said ‘shut up’
but added that he understood why. He arranged to meet Cathy to warn her (she had been warned a
couple of times before) that her behaviour was not correct.

I know my comment to Cathy will be brought up and Charles used it to validate his being Chair of the
working group (to keep the peace between Cathy and myself). However, | had made a friendly
gesture towards her before the working group meeting which she ignored. Instead she started
insulting Laura Tapping before the Working Party meeting began. | calmly stated that we were to
discuss Prestbury not Cheltenham. Councillor Dan Taylor was at the whole of the Working Group
meeting and Sandra Attwood arrived late but was also present.

I have worked with boards of directors around the world, charities, government departments and
the British Council but never experienced such behaviour as | have from Charles and Cathy. | am also
on the Patient Group for the new Wilson Health Centre in Prestbury where we are really making a
difference for patients. They would all validate that | work as a team member, and that | behave with
respect and courtesy. | have received support from the Chair with the net zero plan whoisina
difficult situation but has been honest and fair throughout.



Page 24

Appendix 3

Code of Conduct for Prestbury
Parish Council

July 2021




Page 25

PRESTBURY

PARIS:H € O0OUNCIL

CODE OF MEMBERS’ CONDUCT

Adopted by Council 21/054
at Full Council meeting on 12 July 2021

l.Introduction
This code of conduct (The Code) is adopted in response to the requirement under 5.27(2)

Localism Act (2011) for the Authority to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by
members of the Council.

Members have a duty to uphold the law and to act on all occasions in accordance with the
public trust placed in them.

Il.  Scope of the Code of Conduct

Government is currently considering how it should advise Authorities on the writing of their
Codes of Conduct, especially in respect of the disclosure of information not personal to a
member of the Authority, and on the sanctions that members might face having breached
their Authority’s Code. Nevertheless, this Code, which is based on Cheltenham Borough
Council’s Code, has been reviewed and applies to members whenever acting in their official
capacity as a member of Prestbury Parish Council when

(a) engaged in the business of Prestbury Parish Council including Ward business or

representing the Council externally;
(b) behaving so as to give a reasonable person the impression of acting as a

representative of Prestbury Parish Council.

This Code of Conduct does not seek to regulate what members do in their purely private and
personal lives.

The obligations set out in this Code are in addition to those which apply to all members by
virtue of the procedural and other rules of the Authority and any protocols and policies that
may be adopted from time to time by the Authority.

Failure to comply with the requirements within this Code of Conduct which relate to
disclosable pecuniary interests and which are set out in sections V and VI and Appendix A, is

a criminal offence.!

lll. General principles of members’ conduct (The Nolan principles)
When carrying out their duties in exercising the functions of their Authority or otherwise
acting as a councillor, members are required by S.28 (1) Localism Act (2011) to observe the
general principles of conduct set out below. These principles will be taken into
consideration when any allegation is received of breaches of the provisions of the Code.

o Selflessness

e [ntegrity

1 Section 34 Localism Act 2011
Page 10f8



Page 26

Objectivity
Accountability
Openness
Honesty

e leadership

IV. Rules of Conduct

Members shall base their conduct on a consideration of the public interest, avoid conflict
between personal interest and the public interest, and resolve any conflict between the
two, at once, and in favour of the public interest.

Members shall observe the following rules:-

General Requirements

(1) Do treat others with respect.

(2) Do not bully any person.

(3) Do not do anything which may cause your Authority to breach any of the equality
enactments.

(4) Do not use your position improperly, to confer on or secure for yourself or any other
person, an advantage or disadvantage, or seek to improperly influence a decision about any
matter from which you are excluded from participating or voting as a result of the
requirements of Part VI of this Code of Conduct.

(5) Do not do anything which compromises, or is likely to compromise, the impartiality of
those who work for, or on behalf of, your Authority.

(6) Do not disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential
nature, except where

(i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it;

(ii) you are required by law to do so;

(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining professional legal
advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the information to any other
person; or

(iv) the disclosure is

(a) reasonable and in the public interest; and

(b) made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the
Authority.

(7) Do not prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that person
is entitled by law.

(8) Do promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your public post by
leadership and example.

(9) Do use your Parish Council email address for all correspondence relating to your role as a
member of Council and do not use it for personal business of any sort.

When using the resources of the Authority, or authorising the use of those resources by
others:

(10) Do make sure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes
(including party political purposes).

(11) Do have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made under the
Local Government Act 1986.

Page 2 of 8



Page 27

(12) Do not use knowledge gained solely as a result of your role as a Member for the
advancement of your own interests.

(13) Do familiarise yourself and use, the full written resources of policies and procedures
that are readily available on the Parish Council’s website.

(14) Do ensure that decisions are made on merit, particularly when making public
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards or benefits.

(15) Do be as open as possible about your own decisions and actions and those of your
Authority and be prepared to give reasons for those decisions and actions.

V. Registration of Interests

Members shall observe the following rules when registering their interests.

(1) Do, within 28 days of the adoption of this Code by the Council or within 28 days of taking
Office as a member (or co-opted member), whichever is sooner, notify the Monitoring
Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined in Appendix A and any other interest
as defined in Appendix B.

(2) Do, within 28 days of re-election as a member or re-appointment as a co-opted member,
notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined in Appendix A
and any other interest as defined in Appendix B which has not already been entered in the
Authority’s Register in accordance with (1) above.

(3) Do, within 28 days of the date of a disclosure referred to in Paragraph 9(1) of this Code,
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest (unless it is the subject of a pending
notification).

(4) Do notify the Monitoring Officer of any changes to interests required within 28 days of
the date of that change to be registered under Appendix B.

(5) Do approach the Monitoring Officer if you feel that your interest should be treated as
sensitive because its disclosure could lead to you, or a person connected with you, being

subject to violence or intimidation.

VI. Declaration of Interests and Restrictions on Participation

Members should observe the following rules:

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Where a matter, in which you have an interest as specified in Appendix A (disclosable
pecuniary interests), arises at a meeting at which you are present, or where you become
aware that you have such an interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at
the meeting:

(1) Do ensure that, if your interest is not entered in the Authority’s Register, you disclose
the interest to the meeting (unless the Authority’s Monitoring Officer considers that it is a
sensitive interest in which case you do not need to disclose the nature of the interest); and
that you notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days in accordance with
Paragraph V(3) of this Code.

(2) Do leave the meeting and do not vote on the matter, participate, or participate further,
in any discussion of the matter at the meeting (unless a dispensation has been granted).

Other Interests
Where a matter, in which
either you have an interest as specified in Appendix B (other interests),

Page 3 0of 8



Page 28

or where a decision on the matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting, to a greater
extent than it would affect the majority of other Council taxpayers, ratepayers or
inhabitants of the Ward affected by the decision, your well-being or financial position or the
well-being or financial position of a member of your family, or any person with whom you
have a close association, or who has a contractual relationship (including employment) with
yourself, member of your family or close associate,

arises at a meeting at which you are present, or where you become aware that you have
such an interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting:-

(3) Do ensure that you disclose the interest to the meeting.

(4) Do leave the meeting and do not vote on the matter, participate, or participate further,
in any discussion of the matter at the meeting (unless a dispensation has been granted or it
is an excepted function), if,

(a) it affects your financial position or the financial position of the member of your family or
person with whom you have a close association described above, or

(b) it relates to the determination of any approval, consent, licence, permission or
registration in relation to you or any person or body described above

and a reasonable member of the public knowing the facts would reasonably regard it as so
significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest.

The rules set out in Paragraph V!(4) above do not have the effect of precluding a Member
from attending a meeting only for the purpose of making representations, answering
questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are also
allowed to attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or
otherwise. The member must, after making their submission, withdraw immediately from
the meeting.

VIl. Duties in respect of the investigation of complaints

Members shall observe the following:-

(1) Do co-operate, at all stages, with any investigation into your conduct which may be
carried out in accordance with the arrangements for the investigation and determination of
complaints which have been put in place by the Parish Council pursuant to the Act?.

(2) Do not seek to intimidate, or attempt to intimidate, any person who is, or is likely to be,
a complainant, a witness or involved in the administration of any investigation or
proceedings in relation to an allegation that a Member has failed to comply with this Code
of Conduct.

VIil. Dispensations

Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest as described in this Code, and set out
in Appendix A, or has an interest which would preclude the member’s participation in the
item of business as described in paragraph V1(disclosable pecuniary interests) of this Code,
the member may make a written application for a dispensation to the Parish Clerk which will
be determined in accordance with the adopted procedure of the Authority.

The Authority may grant a member a dispensation to participate in a discussion and vote on
a matter at a meeting even if the member has a disclosable pecuniary interest as described
in this Code, and set out in Appendix A, or has an interest which would preclude the
member’s participation in the item of business as described in paragraph VI (other interests)
of this Code.

2 Section 28(b) Localism Act 2011

Page 4 of 8



IX.

Page 29

Definitions

The following are definitions which apply for the purposes of this Code of Conduct.

1.
2.
3

wu

10.

11.
1z,

“The Act” is the Localism Act 2011.
“The Authority” is Prestbury Parish Council.
“Meeting” is a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, subcommittee, joint
committee or joint subcommittee of the Authority.
“Standards Committee” is the Standards Committee of Cheltenham Barough Council.
“Member” is an elected or a co-opted member of the Authority.
“Co-opted member” is a person who is not a member of the Council but who is
either a member of any committee or subcommittee of the Council, or a member of,
and represents the Council on any joint committee or joint subcommittee of the
Council, and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any
meeting of that committee or subcommittee. This Council has determined that a
subcommittee, only, may co-opt additional members who are not members of
Council, but that they will not have an entitlement to vote on any matter.
“Monitoring Officer” is the Monitoring Officer to Cheltenham Borough Council.
“Pending notification” is an interest which has been notified to the Monitoring
Officer, but which has not been entered in the Authority’s register in consequence of
that notification.
“Member of your family” means:
e Partner (spouse/civil partner/someone you live with as if a spouse or civil
partner);
e A parent/parent-in-law, son/daughter, step-son/step-daughter, child of
partner; or the partners of any of these persons;
e A brother/sister, grandparent/grandchild, uncle/aunt, nephew/niece; or the
partners of any of these persons.
“Close associate” means someone with whom you are in close regular contact over a
period of time who is more than an acquaintance. It may be a friend, a colleague, a
business associate or someone you know through general social contacts. Itis
someone a reasonable member of the public would think you might be prepared to
favour/disadvantage (“close association” shall be construed accordingly).
“well-being” means general sense of contentment and quality of life.
Excepted functions are functions of the Authority in respect of
(i)  housing, where the member is a tenant of your Authority provided that those
functions do not relate particularly to the member’s tenancy or lease;
(i) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members;
(iii) any ceremonial honour given to members; and
(iv} setting Council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Page 50of 8



Page 30

Appendix A

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
The interests set out below are “Disclosable Pecuniary Interests” in accordance with the
Localism Act 2011 and members must notify the Monitoring Officer in accordance with
Paragraphs 8(1)-(3) of this Code of Conduct of any interest which is an interest of the
Member or of any of the following:

e the member’s spouse or civil partner;

e aperson with whom the member is living as husband and wife; or

e a person with whom the member is living as if they were civil partners; and the

member is aware that that other person has the interest.

Subject Disclosable Pecuniary Interest
Employment, Office, Trade, Any employment, office, trade, profession or
Profession or Vocation vocation carried on for profit or gain.
Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial

benefit (other than from the relevant authority)
made or provided within the relevant period in
respect of any expenses incurred by M in carrying
out duties as a member, or towards the election
expenses of M.

This includes any payment or financial benefit from
a Trade Union within the meaning of the Trade
Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act
1992(a).

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant
person (or a body in which the relevant person has
a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority —
(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the
area of the relevant authority.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy
land in the area of the relevant authority for a
month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge) —

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and

Page 6 of 8



Securities

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)

(i)

Page 31

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest.

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
(a) that body (to M'’s knowledge) has a place of
business or land in the area of the relevant
authority; and :

(b) either —

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds
£25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

(i) if the share capital of that body is of more than
one class, the total nominal value of the shares of
any one class in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011;

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the
relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a
director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest;
“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and
provident society;

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does
not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to
occupy the land or to receive income

“M” means a member of a relevant authority;

“member” includes a co-opted member;

“relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M
gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may
be, of the Act;

“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the
Act;

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000(b) and other securities of any description, other than money
deposited with a building society.

Page 7 of 8



Page 32

Appendix B
Other Interests
The interests set out below are “other interests” which must be notified to the Monitoring
Officer in accordance with Paragraphs 8(1), 8(2) and 8(4) of this Code of Conduct.
A member must notify the Monitoring Officer of any interest held by the member in any of
the categories set out below:-

Subject Other Interest

Management or Control Any body of which the Member isin a
position of general control or management
and to which he/she is appointed or
nominated by the Council.

Public/Charitable and Other Any body

External Bodies (a) exercising functions of a public nature;
(b) directed to charitable purposes; or
(c) one of whose principal purposes includes
the influence of public opinion or policy
(including any political party or Trade
Union) of which the Member of the Council
is a member or in a position of general
control or management.

Employer Any person or body who employs, or has
appointed, the Member.

Gifts and Hospitality The name of any person, organisation,
company or other body from whom the
member has received, by virtue of their
Office, gifts or hospitality worth an
estimated value of £50 or more.

Page 8 of 8



Page 33

Appendix 4

Councillor Taylor’s response to
report



Page 34
Hughes, Claire

Subject: FW: Code of Conduct enquiry - confidential

Dear Kate

Thank you for your email and the attachment.

You ask for me to point out any factual errors:
1. | know that Martyn Hansen did suggest the working party should be run like a committee despite him now
denying it. He may not have instructed it but he made his view that that was the best way known to me. | have an

email that proves this.
2. Hilarie Owen did not leave the meeting in tears. When she left she just seemed very angry as she had not got her

own way in taking over the working group. She returned to the room five/ten minutes later to collect something

and was most certainly not in tears then. ‘
3. Dan Taylor says | said 'you are only here because of me' - this is not true. 1 don't know why he is saying this. | can

only guess.
Incidentally you make mention that Cathy Hunt and | are friends. This is true although we have not colluded in

presenting our evidence hoping that truth would prevail. | believe Hilarie Owen and Dan Taylor are friends too.
4. Martyn wanted the working party to report initially to F&GP, then full PPC. | agreed. It was not my 'decision’,
having agreed with him how to proceed, | was implementing a joint decision.

5. 1 am not chairman of F&GP, Martyn is.

If you need further clarification on any of these points, please let me know.

I stand by everything | said to you. | acted in a definite way because otherwise | believe the meeting would have
descended into chaos and it had been suggested by Martyn that a traditional structure was implemented. Had | not,
| believe | would have been censured by Martyn Hansen and the F&GP. Hilarie wanted to run the group her way.
Dan wanted it done Hilarie's way too. Sandra decided after discussion, which Hilarie constantly tried to interrupt, to
favour the committee structure Martyn and | had agreed would be the best way.

I hope you will amend your report to include my points 1-5 above and forward it to the monitoring officer and
independent person..

| understand that as you have now written your report, its conclusion is final, though | am slightly bemused that you
are now asking for factual corrections after submitting it.

Best wishes

Charles Taylor



Page 35

The procedure for hearings before the Standards Hearing Sub-Committee.

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

Procedure

Formal hearings will be conducted by the Standards Hearings Sub-
Committee.

A member of the Standards Committee, against whom a Code of Conduct
complaint has been made, shall not be permitted to sit as a member of the
Sub-Committee until consideration of the complaint has been concluded.

Agendas for Sub-Committees shall be published and the Sub-Committee shall
be held in public unless:

e This would involve disclosure of exempt information as defined by
Schedule 12A, Local Government Act, 1972; and

e In all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information.

Before the Sub-Committee meets, the Monitoring Officer shall write to the
member and to the complainant, asking each:

e Whether they accept the finding in the report

e Whether they dispute any factual part of the report, identifying any
areas of dispute.

e Whether they wish to call any witnesses at the hearing. (Only
witnesses identified to the Investigating Officer by the complainant or
by the member may be called as witnesses. In law, witnesses do not
have to attend.)

e Whether the complainant wishes to be present at the hearing. (The
complainant shall be invited, but is not obliged, to attend the hearing. If
the complainant is not present, the procedure below shall be adapted
accordingly.)

e Whether they wish to be accompanied at the hearing.

Subject to the discretion of the Chair, the hearing shall be conducted as
follows:

a. The Investigating Officer will be invited to present their report
and to call witnesses. The complainant, the member and the
Sub-Committee (including the Independent Person(s)), in that
order, may ask questions or seek clarification both of the
Investigating Officer and any witnesses.

b. The complainant will be invited to comment on the report and its
findings and to call witnesses. The Investigating Officer, the
member and the Sub-Committee, in that order, may ask
questions or seek clarification both of the complainant and any
witnesses.



1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

Page 36

C. The member will be invited to comment on the report and its
findings and to call any witnesses. The Investigating Officer, the
complainant and the Sub-Committee, in that order, may ask
guestions or seek clarification both of the member and any
witnesses.

d. The Investigating Officer, the complainant and the member will
be invited, in that order, to make brief concluding remarks.

The Chair and Sub-Committee, including the Independent Person(s), may ask
for advice at any stage from the Monitoring Officer.

Once the hearing has been concluded, the Sub-Committee, with the
Independent Person(s), will retire to consider its decision. It may call on the
Monitoring Officer to provide advice and guidance. The Sub-Committee is
required to do the following:

0] to decide on the facts,

(i) to decide on whether these facts constitute a breach of the Code
of Conduct, and

(i) to decide on the appropriate sanction.

In deciding whether or not to uphold the complaint the Sub-Committee must
apply, as the standard of proof, the balance of probability, with the burden of
proof resting on the Investigating Officer. The Sub-Committee may only make
an adverse finding if satisfied, on this basis, that the member has breached
the Code of Conduct.

The Sub-Committee will then return and announce its findings on whether
there has been a breach of the Code, with reasons.

Following announcement of the Sub-Committee’s findings, the complainant
and the member will be invited to make submissions, if necessary, regarding
remedies or sanctions.

The Sub-Committee will then consider what, if any, sanction it wishes to
impose. It shall retire whilst it considers this. It will then announce its decision
and give reasons.

Following the hearing, the Monitoring Officer shall draft a record of the
decision for approval by the Sub-Committee. Once the record of decision has
been settled, a copy shall be sent to each of the parties.

Appealing a Decision about a Complaint

There is no right of appeal against a decision on a Code of Conduct
complaint. If the complainant or the member considers that the complaint has
not been considered properly by the Council, they may be able to complain to
the Local Government Ombudsman or seek permission for judicial review.

Sanctions available to the Sub-Committee



Page 37

3.1  The Sub-Committee has powers to take action in respect of individual
councillors as necessary to promote and maintain high standards of conduct.

3.2  The Sub-Committee may do one, or a combination, of the following:

a.

b.

Issue a formal Censure or Reprimand to the Member

Report its findings to Council (or to the Parish or Town Council)
for information

Recommend the Member’s Group Leader (or in the case of
ungrouped members, recommend the Council or Committees) to
remove the Member from appointments to Committees or Sub-
Committees of the Council

Recommend the Leader of the Council to remove the Member
from any appointment to the Cabinet, or from particular Portfolio
responsibilities

Instruct the Monitoring Officer to (or recommend that the Parish
or Town Council) arrange training for the Member

Recommend to the Council or its Cabinet, or to the Parish or
Town Council that all outside appointments to which the
member has been appointed or nominated by that Authority are
removed

Exclude (or recommend that the Parish or Town Council
exclude), the Member from the Council’s offices or other
premises for a specified period, with the exception of meeting
rooms as necessary for attending Council, Committee and Sub-
Committee meetings

If relevant, recommend that the Council removes the Member
from the post of Leader of the Council.

Publish its findings in respect of the Member’s conduct.

In cases where the Sub-Committee makes an adverse finding against a Member, its
decision will be published on the Standards Committee pages of the Council’s
website. This includes decisions relating to members of Town or Parish councils.

(END)



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Review of complaint under the Code of Conduct
	Appendix 1 - Investigating Officer Report - Complaint against Councillor Charles Taylor
	Appendix 2 - The procedure for hearings before the Standards Hearings Sub-Committee




